
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

July 27, 2021, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Consent Agenda

a. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing to July 27, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-015:
Amending Palmer Municipal Code Sections 2.45.030(H) and 2.61.020(J) to Move Parks
Maintenance to Community Development ............................................................... Page 3 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Minutes
a. June 22, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes
b. June 22, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes
c. July 6, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation from Palmer Museum and Visitor Information Center Director Sam Dinges

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. Mayor’s Report
3. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Ordinance No 21-014: Amending the Zoning Map to Revise the Zoning Designation of Lot 200,

Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density
 ............................................................................................................................... Page 15 

2. Resolution No. 21-025: Accepting and Appropriating an American Rescue Plan Grant offer from
the Federal Aviation Administration in an amount of $32,000.00 by way of the Airport Rescue Plan
Act of 2021 for additional assistance to airports during the COVID-19 public health emergency and
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Grant When Offered ................................. Page 47 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Sabrena Combs 
Council Member Julie Berberich 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Brian Daniels 
Council Member Jill Valerius 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Manager John Moosey 

Page 1 of 84

...................................................................Page 7

.................................................................... Page 13
................................................................. Page 9

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

I. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which Would Clearly Have an Adverse Effect Upon the Finances

of the Public Entity and Matter which by Law, Municipal Charter, or Ordinances are Required to be
Confidential – Potential Litigation Attorney Client Communication: State of Alaska City of Palmer
Dispatch Agreement (note: action may be taken by the council following the executive session)

J. NEW BUSINESS
1. Resolution No. 21-026: A Resolution Stating an Opposition to a Proposed Sales Tax Initiative

for Infrastructure Projects Initiated by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough.
2. Action Memorandum No. 21-045: Recommendation to the City Council for the City Clerk Interim

Appointment.

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS

N. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Aug 10 Special 6 pm Joint BED 

Aug 10 Regular 7 pm 

Aug 24 Regular 7 pm 
Sep 14 Regular 7 pm 
Sep 28 Regular 7 pm 
Oct 11 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 12 Special 6 pm Budget 
Oct 12 Regular 7 pm 
Oct 26 Special 6 pm Budget 
Oct 26 Regular 7 pm 

............... Page 79

........................................................................................................... Page 83

Page 2 of 84



City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-015 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 21-015 

Subject:  Amending Palmer Municipal Code Sections 2.45.030(H) and 2.61.020(J) to Move Parks Maintenance to 
Community Development 

Agenda of: July 27, 2021 - Introduction 

Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

√ Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 3 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-015 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Ordinance No. 21-015 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
At the June 22, 2021, meeting City Council passed unanimously Resolution 21-023.  This resolution amended the 
pay plan to change the Arena Manager to the Parks and Facilities Manager.  This position will be responsible for 
the day-to-day operation of the ice arena, manager of parks, trails and facilities and provide staff support to the 
Parks Recreational Advisory Board. This position will unify the conceptualization, implementation, operation and 
the maintenance of parks, trails, and facilities, providing the community with a more comprehensive and efficient 
operation of parks and facilities in Palmer.   
 
Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 2 outlines duties for the departments within the city.  This is a housekeeping 
ordinance to reflect maintenance of parks and facilities to be placed under the authority of the community 
development department, in effect creating a comprehensive parks and recreational division. 
 
The transfer of park maintenance will occur in the spring of 2022 so not to disrupt current park maintenance 
operations and to allow the Parks and Facility Manager to focus their efforts on the ice rink start up for 2021-
2022. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 21-015 to amend Palmer Municipal Code to place maintenance of parks under community 
development. 
 
 

Page 4 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-015 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 21-015 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Amending Palmer Municipal Code Sections 2.45.030(H) 
and 2.61.020(J) to Move Parks Maintenance to Community Development 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to the employee pay plan to change the Arena 
Manager to the Parks and Facility Manager to a level 9; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the amendment was to create a comprehensive parks department to oversee 

the Parks Recreational Advisory Board, and to add maintenance under the Parks and Facility Manger; and  
 
WHEREAS, park planning, implementation and maintenance is an important quality of life element of the 

City of Palmer. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby amends the Palmer Municipal 

Code Title 2 to reflect the desired organizational changes. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be incorporated into the 
Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to the other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.45.030 H is hereby amended to read as follows (new language 
is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 

 
2.45 Department of Community Development 
2.45.030 Duties 
H. Development, maintenance and operation of parks and recreational facilities including: 

1. MTA Events Center 
2. Palmer municipal golf course 

 
Section 4. Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.61.020 is hereby amended to read as follows (new language 

is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 
 
2.61.020 Duties 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by:  

Date:  
Public Hearing:  

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 5 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-015 Page 2 of 2 

The duties of the department of public works shall include supervision and responsibility of: 
A. The city water utility; 
B. The city sewer utility; 
C. Road Maintenance; 
D. Capital facilities; 
E. Utility permits; 
F. Solid waste collection; 
G. Driveway permits; 
H. Maintenance, custodial services, repair, minor construction, renovation and upkeep of all rolling stock 

and buildings; 
I. Airport maintenance; and 
J. Park maintenance; and 
K J.     Other duties as assigned by the city manager. 

 
Section 5. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 21-015 shall take effect upon adoption by the city of Palmer 

City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2021.  
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
______________, Acting City Clerk 

Page 6 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 22, 2021, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
June 22, 2021 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on June 22, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich 
Richard W. Best (participated telephonically) 
Steve Carrington 

Sabrena Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius (participated telephonically)

Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

John Moosey, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
Michael Gatti, City Attorney (participated telephonically) 

Kimberly Green, Human Resources 
Kara Johnson, Deputy City Clerk 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Daniels 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Dicky Hudgins spoke against the COVID-19 vaccine. 
 
Ms. Chris Tyree spoke against the COVID-19 vaccine. 
 
Ms. Jackie Goforth spoke against the COVID-19 vaccine. 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Committee of the Whole for Discussion Regarding City Clerk Recruitment (note: action may be taken 
following the committee of the whole) 

  

Page 7 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 22, 2021, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

Main Motion: To Enter Into Committee of the Whole 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Berberich 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 6:12 p.m. 
 
Topics addressed in the Committee of the Whole included: 

• Incoming City Clerk salary; 
• Job posting closing date; 
• Advertising; 
• The need to hire a recruiter for the position; and 
• Relocation reimbursement. 

 
The Mayor adjourned from Committee of the Whole at 6:44 p.m. and reconvened the special meeting. 
 
Upon exiting the Committee of the Whole and reconvened the Special Meeting, the following motions were 
made: 
 

Main Motion: To Extend the Open Application Date for the City Clerk Position to July 7, 
2021 and to Give Human Resources a Budget of $2,000.00 for Advertising 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Berberich 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
G. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City Clerk Recruitment 
(Note: All city clerk candidates may be discussed during the executive session. Personnel action 
regarding the City Clerk Candidates may be taken following the executive session) 

 
Mayor DeVries stated the Executive Session was not needed at this time. 
 
H. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Alley reported no Items Placed on the Table (see official meeting packet for items placed on the 
table). 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Kara Johnson, Acting City Clerk 
 
_______________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 8 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 22, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
June 22, 2021 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on June 22, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich 
Richard W. Best (participated telephonically)  
Steve Carrington 

Sabrena Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius (participated telephonically)

Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

John Moosey, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney (participated telephonically) 
Kara Johnson, Deputy City Clerk 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
Council Member Best joined the meeting at 7:02 p.m. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing for July 13, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-010: 

Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 17.86 Allowing Accessory Dwelling Units in the 
Commercial Limited and Commercial General Districts and Elimination of Lot Size Requirements 
Within the Central Business 

b. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing for July 13, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-011: 
Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 3.16.050 Pertaining to the Removal of Sales Tax 
Exemptions at the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport 

c. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing for July 13, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-012: 
Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 12.08 Pertaining to the Fuel Flowage Fee for the 
Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport 

d. Resolution No. 21-022: Appointing Election Officials for the City of Palmer Regular Election on 
Tuesday, October 5, 2021 

 
Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda and Consent Agenda 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Daniels 

Vote: 6 Yes/1 Absent (Best) 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
Council Member Best joined the meeting at 7:02 p.m. 

Page 9 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 22, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPERANCES REQUEST 
1. Presentation of a Proclamation to Palmer High School Baseball Team in Recognition of Wining the 

State Championship 
 
Mayor DeVries presented a proclamation to Palmer High School Baseball Team in recognition of winning the 
State Championship. Coach Dave Combs accepted the proclamation on behalf of the team. 
 

2. Presentation from Scottish Highland Games Coordinator Jeni McDaniel Regarding the Scottish 
Highland Games 

 
Ms. Jeni McDaniel highlighted Scottish Highland Games events, which are to be held on June 26 - 27, 2021, 
at the Alaska State Fairgrounds and presented the Council with a flyer of the event. 
 
F. REPORTS 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Moosey reported on upcoming events, upcoming legislation, and state COVID-19 funding for 
the community. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
a. Accept City Clerk Resignation 

 
City Clerk Alley reported regarding the city of Palmer’s Service, special meeting scheduled for July 6, and the 
appeal process of variances and applicants. 
 

Main Motion: To Accept City Clerk Alley’s Resignation with Many Regrets and Thanks 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
a. Palmer Pride Awards Nominations 

 
Mayor DeVries spoke on the cancelation of the 40th Anniversary of Sister City, Soroma, Japan. 
 
Council Member Best left the meeting at 7:46 p.m. 
 

4. City Attorney’s Report 
 
None. 
 
Council Member Best joined the meeting at 7:49 p.m. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Ron Huskstep spoke against the legality of city-wide bingles currency. 
 
Ms. Chris Tyree spoke against the COVID-19 vaccine. 
 
Mr. Erik Anderson spoke on the process of requesting city variances. 
 
Ms. Cindy Hudgins spoke on the conflict of city event planning in downtown on July 17. 

Page 10 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 22, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 

 
Mr. Mike Chmielewski spoke on the passing Fire Chief Contini and his contributions to the community. 
 
Ms. Jackie Goforth spoke on the effects of COVID-19. 
 
H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Ordinance No. 21-008: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 8.20 Regarding Garbage 
Collection and Disposal (Pending Motion) 

 
Primary Amendment #1: To Approve the Amendments Proposed by City Attorney Gatti 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Best 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
Vote on Motion: To Approve Ordinance No. 21-008 as Amended 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution No. 21-023: Amending the 2021 City of Palmer Employee Pay Plan 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 21-023 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Valerius 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 

2. Action Memorandum No. 21-039: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of the 
City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection for the Renewal of Liquor License No. 3767 for the 
HumDingers Gourmet Pizza Located at 173 S. Valley Way 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-039 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
3. Action Memorandum No. 21-040: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of the 

City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection for the Renewal of Liquor License No. 5854 for the Bleeding 
Heart Brewery Located at 562 S. Denali Street 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-040 

Moved by: Carrington 
Seconded by: Berberich 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
J. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which Would Clearly Have an Adverse Effect Upon the Finances 
of the Public Entity and Matter which by Law, Municipal Charter, or Ordinances are Required to be 
Confidential – Potential Litigation Attorney Client Communication: State of Alaska City of Palmer 

Page 11 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 22, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 

Dispatch Agreement (note: action may be taken by the council following the executive session) 
 
City Manager Moosey stated Executive Session was not needed at this time. 
 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Alley reported written testimony from Mr. Erik Anderson and proposed amendments to Ordinance 
No. 21-008 were Items Placed on the Table (see official meeting packet for items placed on the table). 
 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Erik Anderson spoke on the effects ATV riding within city limits. 
 
Mr. Mike Chmielewski spoke on the effects ATV riding within city limits. 
 
M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
No direction given to staff for legislation to placed on a future agenda. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 __________, City Clerk 
 
_______________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 12 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: July 6, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
July 6, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on July 6, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich  
Richard W. Best 
Steve Carrington  

Sabrena Combs, Deputy Mayor  
Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius

Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

John Moosey, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney (participated telephonically) 
 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Valerius 
 

Primary Amendment #1: To Add a City Manager Report Between Item F. and Item G. 
Moved by: DeVries 

Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 

Vote on Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda, as Amended 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution No. 21-024: Accepting the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Award 
to Non-Entitlement Units of Local Governments (NEUs) from the Alaska Department of Commerce, 
Community and Economic Development  

 
Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 21-024 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Berberich 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

Page 13 of 84



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: July 6, 2021, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 
 

 
2. Action Memorandum No. 21-041: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Contract with Roger Hickel Contracting for General Construction of Two Secondary Clarifiers and 
Associated Equipment as Part of Phase II of Required Facilities Upgrades at the Palmer, Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, in an Amount Not to Exceed $7,196,000.00 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-041 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Berberich 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
F. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Erik Anderson testified regarding the Cedar Park variance approval process stating it was flawed and 
protocols were not followed per Palmer Municipal Code Section 13.16.040 and end of Palmer Municipal Code 
Title 16. He stated he was conceding to appealing and expressed to the disapproval of the process followed. 
He expressed concern for Action Memorandum No. 21-041 and the approval of the contract. 
 
Ms. Jaqueline Goforth testified regarding the USPS mail process regarding the ballot mail out process. 
 
G. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager John Moosey reported the deadline for applying is July 7, eight applications had been received 
to date, two out of state applicants had clerk experience, estimated timing for the next person to start would 
be September, and the city needed to hire someone to assist with the election. 
 
H. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
None. 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 ________________, City Clerk 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 

Page 14 of 84



City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-014 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Ordinance No. 21-014 

Subject:  Amending the Zoning Map to Revise the Zoning Designation of Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, 
from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential 

Agenda of: July 13, 2021 - Introduction 

Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Brad Hanson, Community Development Director 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
√ Community Development June 22, 2021 

Finance
Fire
Police
Public Works

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

√ Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk Acting City Clerk 

Page 15 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-014 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 

1. Ordinance No. 21-014 
2. Planning and Zoning Commission Resolution No. 21-004 with Findings of Facts 
3. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes for June 17, 2021 (Draft Copy) 
4. Staff Report 
5. Public Notice and Vicinity Map for Council Public Hearing of July 13, 2021 
6. Zoning Map Amendment Application 
7. Public Comments Received for City Council Public Hearing 

 
Summary Statement/Background: 
 
On June 1, 2021, Martin Moffat, The Alaska Life LLC initiated a zoning map amendment to re-zone Lot 200, Block 
1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3 to R-4.  The property was a legal nonconforming structure/use and had three 
structures containing a total of 11 dwelling units.  Structures one and two (MSB building information) were added 
to the lot in 2002 and contained a four-plex and a tri-plex.  The original building was known as ‘The Felton House’ 
and was built in 1939.  The structure contained 4 units but was torn down by the owner due to its age and the 
necessary modifications needed to make the building safe and habitable. 
 
The current zoning designation of R-3 for this lot permits only medium density residential uses up to eight units.    
An R-4, High Density Residential district would allow for more than eight dwelling units on individual lots, limited 
by the lot size.  The owners are requesting a zone change to allow additional dwelling units to be built on the 
property, in order to conform to current Palmer Municipal Code. 
 
Ordinance No. 21-014 will re-zone Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium Density Residential 
to R-4, High Density Residential allowing additional dwelling units on the property. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 21-014 
 
 

Page 16 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-014 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Ordinance No. 21-014 

 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting the Zoning Map to Revise the Zoning Designation 
of Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High 
Density Residential 
 

WHEREAS, Martin Moffat, The Alaska Life LLC initiated a zoning map amendment application received 
on June 1, 2021 to re-zone Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium Density Residential to 
R-4, High Density Residential; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission duly gave required notices, held its required public hearing on June 17, 2021, 
made a written report of its decision as to such need, justification and effect of the change of zoning in 
Commission Resolution 21-004, and voted 6 in favor and 0 opposed to recommend that such amendment to the 
zoning map be approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) adopted findings of fact in Resolution  
No. 21-004 as to the need, justification and effect to the zoning map amendment on June 17, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council duly gave required notices, held its required public hearing on this date, and 
has duly considered the request to re-zone the property from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High 
Density Residential, all evidence and testimony presented including any comments of the persons attending the 
public hearing, the findings of fact set forth in Planning and Zoning Commission Resolution No. 21-004, and the 
recommendation of the Commission. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be incorporated into the 
Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to the other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 
 Section 3. The City of Palmer Zoning Districts Map dated November 2017 is hereby amended to revise 
the zoning designation of Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium Density Residential to     
R-4, High Density Residential 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager 

Date: July 13, 2021 
Public Hearing:  

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 17 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-014 Page 2 of 2 

Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 21-014 shall take effect upon adoption by the city of Palmer 
City Council. 
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
________________, Acting City Clerk 

Page 18 of 84



 

 

PALMER PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-004 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PALMER PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDING CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVE A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FOR LOT 200, BLOCK 1, FELTON SUBDIVISION 
TO BE REZONED FROM R-3, MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO R-4, HIGH DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL, LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 18 NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST, SEWARD 
MERIDIAN, ALASKA 
  
 WHEREAS, Kyle & Nicole Moffat, Martin & Nikki Moffatt, The Alaska Life LLC, have initiated 
a zoning map amendment application to change the zoning designation for Lot 200, Block 1, 
Felton Add subdivision from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, a request for a zoning map amendment must be reviewed by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and a recommendation reflecting the findings of the Commission must be 
forwarded to the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 1, 2021 162 public hearing notices were mailed to property owners 
within 1,200’ of the site in accordance with 17.80.030. Notification of the public hearing was 
published in the Frontiersman on June 11, 2021.  A total of 2 written comments were received in 
response, with 0 in favor of, 0 opposed and 2 no objections; and   
 
 WHEREAS, Goal 1 of Chapter 6, Land Use, from the Palmer Comprehensive Plan 
promotes growth guided to make Palmer an increasingly attractive place to live, work, invest 
and visit; and 

 
WHEREAS, Goal 5 encourages the development of high quality buildings that reflects 

Palmer’s historical character; and 
 
WHEREAS, Goal 6 of Chapter 6 supports improvements to the downtown area to help 

insure Palmer’s traditional downtown is lively, attractive, and inviting for residents and visitors; 
 

The following facts support a finding that this zone change is in accordance with the Zoning 
Code, Title 17, and the Comprehensive Plan: 
 
Fact 1: 
 
a) The proposed change would support the objectives and goals of the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan by encouraging attractive development that will improve the neighborhood and 
increase the availability of higher density housing near downtown.      

 
b) This new building will reflect Palmer’s character and historical setting with high quality 

architecture while maintaining the traditional appeal of Palmer.     
 
c) The proposed change will provide more accommodations in the downtown area as well as 

encourage spending for visitors and tourists.  

Page 19 of 84



 

 

 
Fact 2: 
 
a) The property for the proposed rezone is contiguous to R-3 zoning on the East side, CL 

Commercial Limited on the West side as well as CG Commercial General to the North and 
South lines of the lot.   

 
b)  Among the other comparable land use in the subject area are residential neighborhoods as 

well as other small businesses such as retail and gift shops.  Many restaurants and dining 
establishments are within walking distance from the property, convenient for visitors of 
Palmer while staying at this location.  

 
 c) PMC 17.27.060 establishes a minimum lot size for dwelling units, that would make the 

development compatible with surrounding properties. 
 
Fact 3: 
 
a) This property is a triple frontage lot and has access on Dogwood, South Colony Way and 

South Bonanza, allowing adequate flow of traffic along with incoming and outgoing visitors.   
  

b) Utilities are available to serve the proposed use of property as High Density Residential, 
current water and sewer are set in place and will support the proposed structure.  
 

c) The proposed change is from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density 
Residential; there would be little to no impact on public schools since the proposed change 
would be for short term lodging.  The nearest public school is .7 miles from the property.   

       
Fact 4: 
 
a) The changed conditions affecting the subject parcel will be the reconstruction of a previous 

structure that has recently been removed.  The continued development of the surrounding 
housing units supports the proposed change to R-4.  

 
b) The surrounding zoning districts consist of R-3, Commercial General and Commercial 

Limited, and have had no recent significant condition changes to the area. The recent 
amendments to the Central Business District allows for flexibility for downtown parking as 
well as opportunities for economic development and more compatible use of land.   

 
Fact 5: 
 
a) The proposed change does not grant the owner any special privilege as the property in 

question is contiguous to existing residential zoning and commercial development.   
 

b) The proposed change is consistent with the public welfare by continuing to permit the 
current use of this property to be developed for commercial activity for the benefit of 
Palmer residents and visitors.   

 

Page 20 of 84



 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Palmer Planning and Zoning Commission 
does hereby recommend the City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment for Lot 200, 
Block 1, Felton Add subdivision from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density 
Residential. 
 
 Passed by the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Palmer, Alaska, this 17th 
day of June, 2021. 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Casey Peterson, Chairman 
  
Nichole Degner 
Planning & Code Compliance Technician 

Page 21 of 84



                                                                                                                                                  
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                                                   June 17, 2021 
                                                                                                                                  Page 1 of 5 

 PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA    

REGULAR MEETING 
 THURSDAY, JUNE 17, 2021 
 7:00 P.M. - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission was called to order by Chair Peterson at 7:00 
p.m.   
 
B. ROLL CALL: 
Constituting a quorum, present in person were Commissioners: 

Casey Peterson, Chair 
Josh Tudor, Vice Chair 

 Linda Combs 
 Lisbeth Jackson 
 Pamela Melin 
 Sabrina Shelton 
Absence(s) excused without objection: 
 Kristy Thom Bernier 
Also present were: 

Brad Hanson, Community Development Director 
Nichole Degner, Community Development Specialist 
Pam Whitehead, Recording Secretary (via teleconference) 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The Pledge was performed. 
 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
The agenda was approved as presented by all members present.  
[ Shelton, Melin, Jackson, Combs, Tudor, Peterson: Absent: Thom Bernier] 
 

E. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 
1. The minutes of the May 20, 2021 Regular Meeting were unanimously approved as presented by 

all members present. 
[Shelton, Melin, Jackson, Combs, Tudor, Peterson: Absent: Thom Bernier] 
 
F. REPORTS:  None. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:  None. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
1. Resolution No. 21-004:  A Resolution of the Palmer Planning and Zoning Commission 

Recommending City Council Approve a Zoning Map Amendment for Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Addition 
Subdivision to be Rezoned from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential, 
Located within Section 33, Township 18 North, Range 2 East, Seward Meridian, Alaska. 

 
Chair Peterson inquired if there were any ex parte communications related to Resolution 21-004.  None 
were disclosed. 

Page 22 of 84



                                                                                                                                                  
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                                                   June 17, 2021 
                                                                                                                                  Page 2 of 5 

 
Staff Report:  Director Hanson reported general and background information on the requested rezone, 
including site information, parcel size, existing zoning, surrounding land uses, particular considerations, 
code requirements, and findings of fact.  Public notice and publishing requirements pursuant to code have 
been met.  A total of 2 written comments were received – 0 in favor, 0 opposed, 2 no objection.  The 
applicants are:  Kyle & Nicole Moffat, Martin & Nikki Moffat, The Alaska Life LLC. 
  
Findings of Fact:  Pursuant to PMC 17.80.036.C, the Commission shall give consideration as to what effect 
the proposed change would have on public health, safety, welfare and convenience, and or a map 
amendment show whether: 
 
Fact 1:  The proposed change is in accordance with the borough and city Comprehensive plans. 
 
Staff Finding: 
• Goal 1 of Chapter 6, Land Use, from the Palmer Comprehensive Plan promotes growth guided to make 

Palmer an increasingly attractive place to live, work, invest and visit. 
• Goal 5 encourages the development of high-quality buildings that reflect Palmer’s historical character. 
• Goal 6 of Chapter 6 supports improvements to the downtown area to help ensure Palmer’s traditional 

downtown in lively, attractive and inviting for residents and visitors. 
Staff finds the following facts in support: 
a) The proposed change would support the goals and objectives of the City’s Comprehensive Plan by 

encouraging attractive development that will improve the neighborhood and increase the availability 
of higher density housing near downtown. 

b) This new building will reflect Palmer’s character and historical setting with high quality architecture 
while maintain the traditional appeal of Palmer. 

c) The proposed change will provide more accommodations in the downtown area as will as encourage 
spending for visitors and tourists. 

 
Fact 2:  The proposed change is compatible with surrounding zoning districts and established land use 
pattern. 
 
Staff Finding: 
a) The property for the proposed rezone is contiguous to R-3 zoning on the East side, CL Commercial 

Limited on the West side as well as CG Commercial General to the North and South lines of the lot. 
b) Among the other comparable land use in the subject area are residential neighborhoods as well as 

other small businesses such as retail and gift shops.  Many restaurants and dining establishments are 
within walking distance from the property, convenient for visitors of Palmer while staying at this 
location. 

c) PMC 17.27.060 establishes a minimum lot size for dwelling units, that would make the development 
compatible with surrounding properties. 

 
Fact 3:  Public facilities such as schools, utilities and streets are adequate to support the proposed change. 
 
Staff Finding: 
a) This property is a triple frontage lot and has access on Dogwood, South Colony Way and South 

Bonanza, allowing adequate flow of traffic along with incoming and outgoing visitors. 
b) Utilities are available to serve the proposed use of property as High Density Residential, current water 

and sewer are set in place and will support the proposed structure. 
c) The proposed change is from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential; there 

Page 23 of 84



                                                                                                                                                  
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                                                   June 17, 2021 
                                                                                                                                  Page 3 of 5 

would be little to no impact on public schools since the proposed change would be for short term 
lodging.  The nearest public school is .7 miles from the property. 

 
Fact 4:  Changed conditions affecting the subject parcel or the surrounding neighborhood support the 
proposed change. 
 
Staff Finding: 
a) The changed conditions affecting the subject parcel will be the reconstruction of a previous structure 

that has recently been removed.  The continued development of the surrounding housing units 
supports the proposed change to R-4. 

b) The surrounding zoning districts consist of R-3, Commercial General and Commercial Limited, and have 
had no recent significant condition changes to the area.  The recent amendments to the Central 
Business District allows for flexibility for downtown parking as well as opportunities for economic 
development and more compatible use of land. 

 
Fact 5:  The proposed change is consistent with the public welfare and does not grant a special privilege 
to the owner(s). 
 
Staff Finding: 
a) The proposed change does not grant the owner any special privilege as the property in question is 

contiguous to existing residential zoning and commercial development. 
b) The proposed change is consistent with the public welfare by continuing to permit the current use of 

this property to be developed for commercial activity for the benefit of Palmer residents and visitors. 
 
Staff Recommendation: (Resolution 21-004) 
 
Based on the information provided, staff recommends approval of the requested rezone.  Staff also finds 
the requested rezone to be in conformance with the Palmer Comprehensive Plan.  If, following the Public 
Hearing, the Commission finds the applicant’s proposal conforms to the Palmer Comprehensive Plan and 
Zoning Code provisions, then staff recommends that the Commission approve the rezone request and 
forward to the City Council with a recommendation for approval. 
 
Public Hearing: (Resolution 21-004) 
Chair Peterson opened the hearing for public testimony at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Applicants’ Presentation: 
Martin Moffat, on behalf of the Moffat family and Alaska Life, LLC 
• Testified in support of the rezoning request; 
• Spoke to the history of the property (previously referred to as “The Felton House” or “Palmer House”) 

and described the renovations that have taken place since they purchased the property in 2018 to 
bring it up to code and still preserve some of its historical nature. 

 
There being no others coming forward to speak, Chair Peterson closed the hearing for public testimony at 
7:17 p.m. 
 
The Commission reviewed and unanimously approved Findings of Fact 1-5 as proposed by staff in support 
of Resolution 21-004 by roll call vote of the commissioners present. 
 
Chair Peterson called for the motion: 

Page 24 of 84



                                                                                                                                                  
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                                                   June 17, 2021 
                                                                                                                                  Page 4 of 5 

 
Main Motion: For approval of Resolution No. 21-004, recommending City Council 

approve a Zoning Map Amendment for Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Addition 
Subdivision to be Rezoned from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, 
High Density Residential, to include adoption of Findings of Fact 1-5 as 
stated by staff in support of Resolution 21-004 and as reviewed by the 
Commission. 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Tudor 

Vote: Unanimous (Absent:  Thom Bernier)  

Action: Motion Carried. 
 
Chair Peterson called a short recess at 7:25 p.m.; meeting resumed at 7:27 p.m. 
 
I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 
1. Committee of the Whole:  Discussion of IM 21-016 regarding Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 17.59 T 

Transitional District (note: action may be taken by the Commission following the committee of the 
whole) 

 
Main Motion: To enter Committee of the Whole for open and ease of discussion regarding 

IM 21-016. 
Moved by: Shelton 

Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Unanimous (Absent:  Thom Bernier) 

Action: Motion Carried. 
 [The Commission entered Committee of the Whole at 7:28 p.m.; exited at 9:03 p.m.] 
 
Director Hanson provided an update from the previous meeting noting the City Council at its June 8 
meeting directed staff to prepare a proposed plan for the preparation of an annexation petition.  P&Z will 
play a large role in assisting staff in preparation of the plan by analyzing the study areas, review of land 
use maps for continuity of land uses, consider any Title 17 policy considerations, land use text 
amendments, setback considerations, and determine whether there are certain parts of annexed areas 
where land use regulations may not apply. 
 
Committee of the Whole discussion included: 
• Review and open discussion of the study area maps and the purpose of the T zone as it relates to 

annexation; 
• Review of the T Transitional District language and commissioner suggestions for revisions; 
• Discussion regarding permitted, prohibited, and conditional uses; 
• Director Hanson will do further research and revise pursuant to the suggestions. 
 
 [The Commission exited Committee of the Whole at 9:03 p.m.] 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Committee of the Whole:  Discussion of IM 21-018 regarding Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 17.60 

General District Regulations (note: action may be taken by the Commission following the committee 
of the whole) 

Page 25 of 84



                                                                                                                                                  
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                                                   June 17, 2021 
                                                                                                                                  Page 5 of 5 

 
Main Motion: To enter Committee of the Whole for open and ease of discussion regarding 

IM 21-018. 
Moved by: Jackson 

Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Unanimous (Absent: Thom Bernier) 

Action: Motion Carried 
 [The Commission entered Committee of the Whole at 9:04 p.m.; exited at 9:39 p.m.] 
 
Director Hanson reported this is further review of Title 17, explaining the General District Regulations are 
part of the code that applies to all zoning districts, generally.  The Commission is to review PMC 17.60 
General Regulations and provide comments where necessary should further action be requested. 
 
Committee of the Whole discussion included: 
• Review and open discussion of PMC 17.60 General District Regulations for suggestions on revisions; 
• Suggestion for clarification purposes to include Definitions of all terms used in the different zones 

districts. 
• Suggestion to clarify 17.60.050, Projections into required yards, paragraph F. regarding enclosed porch 

or arctic entry; 
• Suggestion to clarify 17.60.070, Fences and walls, paragraph A. 
 
 [The Commission exited Committee of the Whole at 9:39 p.m.] 
 
K. PLAT REVIEWS:  None. 
 
L. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 
M. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:    
 
Commissioner Shelton advised she will be out of state for the next meeting. 
 
Chair Peterson thanked Director Hanson and his staff for all the help answering questions and concerns. 
 
Director Hanson emphasized if any of the Commission has questions or concerns to not hesitate to call 
and let staff know, that it will facilitate getting to a faster end result. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned without objection at 9:40 p.m. 
 
APPROVED by the Planning and Zoning Commission this 15th day of July, 2021. 
 
 
       _________________________________________ 
       Casey Peterson, Chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Brad Hanson, Community Development Director 
 

Page 26 of 84



          
 

 

 

 

PART I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 
Location: Lot 200, Block 1,  Felton Addition Subdivision  

 
Site Address: 380 South Colony Way, Palmer Alaska 99645 

 
Request: To re-zone the Lot from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density 

Residential District 
 

Applicant(s) & 
Owner: 

Kyle & Nicole Moffat, Martin & Nikki Moffat, The Alaska Life LLC 
 

Public Hearing Date: June 17, 2021 
 

Notification Requirements: In accordance with 17.80.030 
On June 1, 2021, 162 public hearing notices were mailed to property owners within 1,200’ of the site.  
Notification of the public hearing was published in the Frontiersman on June 11, 2021.  A total of 2 
written comments were received in response, with 0 in favor of, 0 opposed and 2 with no objection.   
 

 
 
PART II. BACKGROUND 
 
Site Information:  
 
Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Addition Subdivision is a triple frontage lot that has access from Dogwood, 
South Colony Way and South Bonanza.  The Lot is located between Lot 100, Felton Add, which is 
zoned R-3, Medium Density Residential and Tract 1-A, Block 1, ARRC #1, which is zoned CL, 
Commercial Limited. 
 
The structure recently removed from the lot was previously known as ‘The Felton House’ and was 
originally built in 1939.  Due to the age of the building and the modifications necessary to make the 
building safe and habitable, the building was demolished in hopes of recreating a replica of the 
previous historical building.   
 
In 2002 two additional buildings were added to the lot.  They included a 4-plex and a tri-plex, which 
were legal in an R-2 district at the time.   
 
In 2005 Lots 100 and 200 of Block 1 were rezoned from R-2, Low Density Residential to R-3, Medium 
Density Residential.  The rezone in 2005 was initiated by the City of Palmer.  It was a result of the 
enactment of R-3 and R-4 zoning districts to title 17 and affected the entire city.  At the time of the 
rezone, it would have been considered a legal nonconforming structure/use because of the total of 11 
dwellings units on the lot.  
     
Parcel Size:  
 
Lot size is 0.65 acres, 28,314 square feet.  
 
Existing Zoning:  
 
R-3, Medium Density Residential 

                  Community Development 
                   Zone Change Application 
                 Staff Report to Commission  
 

Page 27 of 84



Surrounding Land Uses:   
  
 Zoning Land use for surrounding areas 
North R-3 Medium density residential 
East  R-3 Single family 
South CG Family First Treasures, thrift & consignment store 
West CL Small businesses, insurance, and law offices 

  
 

      
 
 
Considerations: 
 
The intent of the R-3, Medium Density Residential District is to establish residential areas with a 
combination of multiple-family structures consisting of eight or fewer dwelling units, and single-family 
residences with a medium population density.  The intent of the R-4, High Density Residential District 
is for residential areas with a combination of multiple-family structures and single-family residences 
with a high population density.  
 

• The property is currently considered a legal non-conforming structure and use because of 11 
dwelling units in an R-3 zoning district. 

 
• The structure previously known as ‘The Felton House’ was recently demolished by the owner. 

 
• The petitioner’s intention is to rebuild the structure in compliance to current code 

requirements, while preserving the familiar historical charm of the development.  
 

• Total allowable dwelling units in an R-4 is 10 because of the lot size requirements in 17.27.060. 
        

 
 
 
 
 

Page 28 of 84



Code Requirements: 
 
In the R-4 High Density Residential District, the required minimum lot width is 60 feet and the required 
minimum lot area is 8,400 square feet.  The total square footage of the proposed rezone property is 
28,314 square feet.  
  

PART III.  FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
(PMC 17.80.036.C) The report of the Commission shall give consideration as to what effect the 
proposed change would have on public health, safety, welfare and convenience, and for a map 
amendment show whether: 
 
Fact 1) The proposed change is in accordance with the borough and city comprehensive 
plans; 

 
Applicant’s response: 
The reconstruction of this building would be mutually beneficial for the applicant and the City of 
Palmer due to the fact that it satisfies the summary of goals found in Chapter 6 of the City of 
Palmer’s comprehensive plan.  The plans for this building and the remaining two buildings, on top of 
the efforts already done, would make Palmer an increasingly attractive place to live, work, invest 
and visit.  This building would help maintain high quality residential neighborhoods and also promote 
development of new commercial endeavors through the means of erecting an extremely high quality 
building, along with continued rehabilitation of the other buildings which house the 11 doors on the 
property.  

 
Staff finding: 
 

• Goal 1 of Chapter 6, Land Use, from the Palmer Comprehensive Plan promotes growth 
guided to make Palmer an increasingly attractive place to live, work, invest and visit. 
 

• Goal 5 encourages the development of high-quality buildings that reflects Palmer’s historical 
character.   
 

• Goal 6 of Chapter 6 supports improvements to the downtown area to help ensure Palmer’s 
traditional downtown is lively, attractive, and inviting for residents and visitors.  
 

Staff finds the following facts in support:  
 
a) The proposed change would support the goals and objectives of the City’s Comprehensive Plan 

by encouraging attractive development that will improve the neighborhood and increase the 
availability of higher density housing near downtown.      

 
b) This new building will reflect Palmer’s character and historical setting with high quality 

architecture while maintaining the traditional appeal of Palmer.     
 

c) The proposed change will provide more accommodations in the downtown area as well as 
encourage spending for visitors and tourists.  
 

 
Fact 2) The proposed change is compatible with surrounding zoning districts and the 
established land use pattern; 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 29 of 84



Applicant’s response: 
Since the property in question has had 11 doors on it for two decades, it is safe to say that there 
would be more change to not have the 11 doors and also not have a building in place that is largely 
the same size/structure/shape that has been there since 1935.  The proposed change will, in 
essence, allow no change to the property because we are simply rebuilding what was once there.  
 
Staff finding: 
 

a) The property for the proposed rezone is contiguous to R-3 zoning on the East side, CL 
Commercial Limited on the West side as well as CG Commercial General to the North and 
South lines of the lot.   
 

b) Among the other comparable land use in the subject area are residential neighborhoods as 
well as other small businesses such as retail and gift shops.  Many restaurants and dining 
establishments are within walking distance from the property, convenient for visitors of 
Palmer while staying at this location.  

 
c) PMC 17.27.060 establishes a minimum lot size for dwelling units, that would make the 

development compatible with surrounding properties. 
 

Fact 3) Public facilities such as schools, utilities and streets are adequate to support the 
proposed change; 

 
Applicant’s response:  
Yes, since the previous question states that there are no real changes to the property should this 
building be erected, no change of utilities, schools, streets or otherwise would be effected.  
 
Staff finding:  
 

a) This property is a triple frontage lot and has access on Dogwood, South Colony Way and 
South Bonanza, allowing adequate flow of traffic along with incoming and outgoing visitors.   

 
b) Utilities are available to serve the proposed use of property as High Density Residential, 

current water and sewer are set in place and will support the proposed structure.  
 

c) The proposed change is from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density 
Residential; there would be little to no impact on public schools since the proposed change 
would be for short term lodging.  The nearest public school is .7 miles from the property.   
 

Fact 4) Changed conditions affecting the subject parcel or the surrounding neighborhood support 
the proposed change; 

 
Applicant’s response:  
Yes.  As already stated, this property has already been functioning in this area and the surrounding 
neighborhood for nearly two decades.  
 
Staff finds: 
 

a) The changed conditions affecting the subject parcel will be the reconstruction of a previous 
structure that has recently been removed.  The continued development of the surrounding 
housing units supports the proposed change to R-4.  
 

b) The surrounding zoning districts consist of R-3, Commercial General and Commercial 
Limited, and have had no recent significant condition changes to the area. The recent 
amendments to the Central Business District allows for flexibility for downtown parking as 
well as opportunities for economic development and more compatible use of land.   

Page 30 of 84



 
Fact 5) The proposed change is consistent with the public welfare and does not grant a special 
privilege to the owner(s). 

 
Applicant’s response:  
The proposed change was extremely welcome to the public as we have communicated to the Palmer 
residents via social media that we are recreating the Felton House with something like-in-kind that 
will be new, modern, and safe.   
The residents gave a tremendous outpouring of positive encouragement and comments in light of 
the historic building being removed.  Along with dozens of residents, several of the City Council 
members thanked us on social media or liked the fact that we are continuing to beautify the 
downtown area and invest heavily in Palmer.   
This change, though it will not be a change to anyone but the people who know the code for 
Palmer, will not grant the owners special privilege other than allowing us to rebuild what was 
already on this property and what is known to the public as a historical part of our town.  
I’ll also add that a constantly reoccurring theme in our reviews from our guests at Colony Suites is 
the proximity of our property to walk to shops and restaurants in the downtown Palmer area.  Just a 
glance at the first 15 reviews of the 205 reviews we have on Airbnb clearly indicates that our 
property attracts visitors to the business district of Palmer.  
https://www.airbnb.com/preformance/quality/overall/reviews  
  
Staff finds;  
 

a) The proposed change does not grant the owner any special privilege as the property in 
question is contiguous to existing residential zoning and commercial development.   
 

b) The proposed change is consistent with the public welfare by continuing to permit the 
current use of this property to be developed for commercial activity for the benefit of Palmer 
residents and visitors.   
 

 
PART III.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based on the information provided by the applicant and comments received from the public, staff 
recommends approval of the requested rezone.  Staff also finds the request to rezone Lot 200, Block 
1, Felton Addition from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential, is consistent 
with, and in conformance with the Palmer Comprehensive Plan. 
 
If following the Public Hearing, Commission finds that the applicant’s proposal conforms to the Palmer 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code provisions, then staff recommends that the Commission 
approve this request for rezoning Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Addition subdivision from R-3, Medium 
Density Residential to R-4 High Density Residential and forward a recommendation for approval to the 
City Council. 
 

Page 31 of 84

https://www.airbnb.com/preformance/quality/overall/reviews


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 1, 2021 
 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The Palmer Planning and Zoning Commission will consider a Zoning Map Amendment Application for 
Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, initiated by Kyle & Nicole Moffat, Martin & Nikki Moffat, The 
Alaska Life LLC.  The property is located at 380 South Colony Way, Palmer, Alaska.   
 
The property is zoned R-3, Medium Density Residential.  The request is to rezone the property to R-4, 
High Density Residential District.  The map on the reverse side of this notice indicates the location of 
the subject property.  For additional information on the R-4 District, please refer to Palmer Municipal 
Code Chapter 17.27 - R-4 High Density Residential District, located online at: www.palmerak.org.  
 
The Commission will hold a Public Hearing to consider this application and to allow for public 
comments as well.  The meeting will be held on June 17, 2021 at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council 
Chambers located at 231 West Evergreen Avenue, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
If you wish to comment on this issue, you may do so by attending the public hearing or by providing 
written comments to the Planning and Zoning Commission by June 9, 2021.  Written comments may 
be mailed to Department of Community Development, 645 E. Cope Industrial Way, Palmer, Alaska, 
faxed to (907) 745-5443 or emailed to me at: ndegner@palmerak.org. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Nichole Degner, Community Development Specialist 
 
 
 
 
For the following reason, I am (please circle) (in favor of), (NOT in favor of), 
(have no objection to) the issuance of the proposed re-zone from R-1 to R-4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name: 
 
Address: 

 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
  

Brad Hanson 
Director 

  

 Dusten Voehl 
 Building Inspector 

 
Beth Skow 

Library Director 
  

Mail: 231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
 Location: 645 E. Cope Industrial Way 

Palmer, AK  99645-6748 
Phone:  907-745-3709 

Fax:  907-745-5443 

www.palmerak.org  

Page 32 of 84

http://www.palmerak.org/


P
age 33 of 84



Page 34 of 84



Page 35 of 84



Page 36 of 84



Page 37 of 84



Page 38 of 84



Page 39 of 84



Page 40 of 84



Page 41 of 84



 
 
 
 
July 7, 2021 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
During the July 27, 2021, Regular Palmer City Council Meeting, the Palmer City Council 
will hold a public hearing on Ordinance No. 21-014: Amending the Zoning Map to Revise 
the Zoning Designation of Lot 200, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium 
Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential. 
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to receive testimony on the proposed rezoning of 
the above tax parcel from its present Medium Density Residential (R-3) to High Density 
Residential (R-4). The affected area is shown on the accompanying map.  
 
A public hearing will be held on July 27, 2021. The meeting will start at 7:00 p.m. in the 
City Council Chambers located at 231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer, Alaska. 
  
If you wish to comment on this issue, you may do so by attending the public hearing or 
by providing written comment to the City Council no later than July 13, 2021, at 5:00 
p.m. Written comments may be mailed to the attention of the City Clerk at the address 
above, dropped off at City Hall, or emailed to cityclerk@palmerak.org. If you have any 
questions regarding the council meeting process, please call 761-1301. If you have any 
questions regarding the rezone, please call 761-1322. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Kara Johnson 
Acting City Clerk 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
For the following reason, I am  

o In favor of (proponent) 
o NOT in favor of (opponent) 
o Have no objections to  

the proposed rezoning Ordinance No. 21-014.  I would also like to provide additional 
comments below: 
  
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 
NAME: ________________________________________________________________
  
ADDRESS: _____________________________________________________________

City Clerk 
  
  

Phone: (907) 761-1301 
Fax: (907) 761-1340 

Email: cityclerk@palmerak.org 
  

231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
Palmer, Alaska 99645-6952 

www.palmerak.org  

  
  

Page 42 of 84

mailto:cityclerk@palmerak.org


P
age 43 of 84



Page 44 of 84



Page 45 of 84



Page 46 of 84



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-025 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-025 

Subject:  Accepting and Appropriating an American Rescue Plan Grant offer from the Federal Aviation 
Administration in an amount of $32,000.00 by way of the Airport Rescue Plan Act of 2021 for additional assistance 
to airports during the COVID-19 public health emergency and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Grant 
When Offered.    

Agenda of: July 27, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 32,000.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
X Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 32,000.00 

Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 

X Not budgeted Grant Income for “Costs Related to Operations, Personnel, Sanitization, 
Janitorial Services, & Combating the Spread of Pathogens at the Airport. 

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 47 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-025 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-025 
2. FAA Form SF-424 American Rescue Plan Grant Application 
3. FAA Grant Assurances 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, signed by the President on March 11, 2021, and administered through 
the Federal Aviation Administration, under the American Rescue Plan Grant Program provided additional aid to 
airports across the nation for relief and to help cover expenses due to the COVID-19 Health Emergency. 
 
$100 million was set aside to help support small GA Airports based upon a predetermined formula.  The Palmer 
Municipal Airport has been awarded $32,000.00 under this formula to be used for costs related to operations, 
personnel, sanitization, janitorial services, & combating the spread of pathogens at the Airport.       
 
This grant money will assist the airport with normal operating expenses.  
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To Approve Resolution No. 21-025 
 
 

Page 48 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-025 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-025 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Accepting and Appropriating an American Rescue Plan 
Grant offer from the Federal Aviation Administration in an amount of $32,000.00 by way of the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 for Assistance to Airports during the COVID-19 Public Health 
Emergency 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer maintains and operates the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer incurs expenses operating the airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Airport Sponsor Grant Assurances have been reviewed by the City of Palmer. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to accept and appropriate an 

American Rescue Plan Grant offer from the Federal Aviation Administration in an amount of $32,000.00 by way 
of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 for assistance to airports during the COVID-19 public health emergency  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to authorize the City 

Manager to execute the grant when offered. 
 

 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
______________, Acting City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Airport Superintendent 

Date: July 27, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 49 of 84



ROMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  12/31/2022 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424                            

*1.  Type of Submission: 

  Preapplication 

  Application 

  Changed/Corrected Application 

*2.  Type of Application 

  New 

  Continuation 

 Revision  

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s): 
                          

*Other (Specify) 
        

*3.  Date Received:  4.  Applicant Identifier: 
NA                                PAQ (Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal) Palmer, AK 

*5b.  Federal Entity Identifier: 
02-0211 

*5b.  Federal Award Identifier: 
      

State Use Only: 

6.  Date Received by State:         7.  State Application Identifier:        

8.  APPLICANT INFORMATION:  

*a.  Legal Name:  City of Palmer   

*b.  Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): 
92-6000194   

*c.  Organizational DUNS: 
03-741-1071  

d.  Address: 

*Street 1:  231 W EVERGREEN    

  Street 2:      

*City:   PALMER   

  County/Parish:           

*State:   AK   

   Province:           

 *Country:  USA: United States    

*Zip / Postal Code 99645    

e.  Organizational Unit: 

Department Name: 
      

Division Name: 
      

 f.  Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application: 

Prefix:    *First Name:    Nathan    

Middle Name:         

*Last Name: Wallace   

Suffix:    

Title:  City Manager  

 Organizational Affiliation: 
          

 *Telephone Number:   907-761-1334     Fax Number:          

 *Email:    nwallace@palmerak.org   

 

Page 50 of 84



OMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  12/31/2022 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424             

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type: 
 X. Airport Sponsor 

Type of Applicant 2:  Select Applicant Type: 
           

Type of Applicant 3:  Select  Applicant Type: 
           

*Other (Specify) 
      

*10. Name of Federal Agency: 
Federal Aviation Administration 

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number: 

20.106   

CFDA Title: 
Airport Improvement Program 
 

*12.  Funding Opportunity Number: 

NA   

 
*Title: 
NA    
 
 

13. Competition Identification Number: 

NA   

Title: 

NA    

 
 

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.): 

      

 

*15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project: 

$32,000 for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at 
the airport, and debt service payments. 

            

            

            

 

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 
Page 51 of 84



OMB Number:  4040-0004 

Expiration Date:  12/31/2022 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424             

16. Congressional Districts Of: 

*a. Applicant:     *b. Program/Project:  

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 

      

17.  Proposed Project: 

*a. Start Date:  NA      *b. End Date:  NA 

18. Estimated Funding ($): 

*a.  Federal 

*b.  Applicant 

*c.  State 

*d.  Local 

*e.  Other 
*f.  Program Income 
*g.  TOTAL 

$32,000  

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$32,000 
 

 

 

*19.  Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process? 

  a.  This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on      . 

  b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review. 

  c.  Program is not covered by E. O. 12372 

*20.  Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If “Yes”, provide explanation in attachment.) 

  Yes    No  

If “Yes”, provide explanation and attach 

         

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements 
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply 
with any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject 
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties.  (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001) 

  ** I AGREE 

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 

Authorized Representative: 

Prefix:     *First Name:  Nathan                       

Middle Name:          

*Last Name: Wallace    

Suffix:     

*Title: City Manager  

*Telephone Number:  907-761-1334 Fax Number:          

* Email:  nwallace@palmerak.org 

*Signature of Authorized Representative:   *Date Signed:         

 

Page 52 of 84



ROMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  12/31/2022 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*1.  Type of Submission:

  Preapplication 

  Application 

  Changed/Corrected Application 

*2.  Type of Application

  New 

  Continuation 

 Revision 

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

*Other (Specify)

*3.  Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:
NA    PAQ (Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal) Palmer, AK 

*5b.  Federal Entity Identifier:
02-0211

*5b.  Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only: 

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a.  Legal Name:  City of Palmer

*b.  Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN):
92-6000194

*c.  Organizational DUNS:
03-741-1071

d. Address:

*Street 1: 231 W EVERGREEN 

Street 2:

*City: PALMER 

County/Parish:

*State: AK 

Province:

*Country: USA: United States 

*Zip / Postal Code 99645 

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name: 

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: *First Name:    John

Middle Name: 

*Last Name: Moosey 

Suffix: 

Title: City Manager 

 Organizational Affiliation: 

*Telephone Number:   907-761-1304   Fax Number: 

*Email:    jmoosey@palmerak.org

Page 53 of 84



OMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  12/31/2022 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
X. Airport Sponsor

Type of Applicant 2:  Select Applicant Type: 

Type of Applicant 3:  Select  Applicant Type: 

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:
Federal Aviation Administration 

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

20.106 

CFDA Title: 
Airport Improvement Program 

*12.  Funding Opportunity Number:

NA 

*Title:
NA 

13. Competition Identification Number:

NA 

Title: 

NA 

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

*15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:

$32,000 for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at 
the airport, and debt service payments. 

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 
Page 54 of 84



OMB Number:  4040-0004 

Expiration Date:  12/31/2022 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

16. Congressional Districts Of:

*a. Applicant: *b. Program/Project:

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 

17. Proposed Project:

*a. Start Date:  NA *b. End Date:  NA

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a.  Federal

*b.  Applicant

*c.  State

*d.  Local

*e.  Other
*f.  Program Income
*g.  TOTAL

$32,000 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$32,000 

*19.  Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on . 

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E. O. 12372

*20.  Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If “Yes”, provide explanation in attachment.)

  Yes    No  

If “Yes”, provide explanation and attach 

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties.  (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

  ** I AGREE 

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 

Authorized Representative: 

Prefix: *First Name:  John

Middle Name: 

*Last Name: Moosey 

Suffix: 

*Title: City Manager

*Telephone Number:  907-761-1304 Fax Number: 

* Email:  jmoosey@palmerak.org

*Signature of Authorized Representative: *Date Signed:

Page 55 of 84



Page 56 of 84



Page 57 of 84



Page 58 of 84



Page 59 of 84



Page 60 of 84



Page 61 of 84



Page 62 of 84



Page 63 of 84



Page 64 of 84



Page 65 of 84



Page 66 of 84



Page 67 of 84



Page 68 of 84



Page 69 of 84



Page 70 of 84



Page 71 of 84



Page 72 of 84



Page 73 of 84



Page 74 of 84



Page 75 of 84



Page 76 of 84



Page 77 of 84



Page 78 of 84



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-026 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-026 

Subject: A Resolution Stating an Opposition to a Proposed Sales Tax Initiative for Infrastructure Projects Initiated 
by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. 

Agenda of: July 27, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ Unknown 
 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

√ Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 
√ Not budgeted 

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 79 of 84



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-026 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-026 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
On July 1, 2021, Mayor Edna DeVries and Manager John Moosey were invited to attend a meeting at the 
Matanuska-Susitna Borough office.  The purpose of the meeting was to learn about MSB’s plan for a 
$73,685,000.00 road infrastructure project within the Borough (please note that there were no proposed 
projects within the corporate boundaries of the City of Palmer).   In addition to the information provided 
regarding the projects, we were informed that the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly intends to seek citizen 
approval for bonding which would include the use of a new Borough sales tax to reimburse the bond.  It is 
expected that the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly will take action on the issue during their regular 
Assembly Meeting on August 3, 2021. 
  
A 2019 study, conducted by the MacDowell Group, found that an increase of a sales tax rate would cause sales 
leakage to other areas without a sales tax (i.e., the City of Palmer will lose sales to Eagle River/Anchorage).   A 
mere 5% sales loss amounts to a $400,000 annual sales tax revenue loss to the city. 
 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-026 authorizing the City Manager to prepare necessary documents to oppose the sales 
tax proposed by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. 

Page 80 of 84



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-026 Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

Resolution No. 21-026 
A Resolution Stating an Opposition to a Proposed Sale Tax Initiative for Infrastructure Projects 
Initiated by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. 

WHEREAS, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough is considering using a citizen approved sales tax initiative as 
the revenue stream for a construction bonding program, and 

       WHEREAS, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough has traditionally and successfully used the bonding process 
to make significant public improvements with property tax initiatives, and   

WHEREAS, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough has always paid its way through property taxes, legislative 
grants and foundation grants, and   

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer derives 66% of its tax operational revenue from a 3% sales tax, and 

WHEREAS, a 2019 study by the McDowell Group for the Matanuska-Susitna Borough stated that an 
increased sales tax would drive some sales away from each city within the Borough, and 

WHEREAS, a minimal reduction of retail sales in the City of Palmer would actuate a revenue loss in the 
amount of hundreds of thousands of dollars annually to the City of Palmer and its public services provided 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Palmer emphatically is opposed 
to any sales tax initiative from the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. 

Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
________________, Acting City Clerk 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by:  

Date: 
Action: 

Vote: 
Yes: No: 

Page 81 of 84



Page 82 of 84



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-045 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-045 

Subject:  Recommendation to the City Council for the City Clerk Interim Appointment Subject to the City Code 
2.11.010 

Agenda of: July 27, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

√ Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 83 of 84



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-045 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1.  Action Memorandum 21-045 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Clerk of the City of Palmer has resigned effective August 2, 2021.  The Clerk has/will use personal time off 
acquired until August 2, 2021.  Based on the City Code 2.11.010 this will require the City Council to appoint an 
Interim City Clerk until a replacement will assume the position.  It is recommended by the City Manager that 
Nichole Degner be appointed for this temporary position for the purpose of running the audio system during 
council meetings, roll call, council vote tallying and the signing of legislation. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:   
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-045. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 84 of 84


	Agenda
	Ord. 21-015 Amending Parks and Recreation
	Ord. 21-014 Rezone for 380 S. Colony Way
	Res. 21-025 American Rescue Plan Grant
	Res. 21-026 Opposition to Sales Tax Proposed by Mat-Su Borough
	AM 21-045 City Clerk Interim



